“In THE SUPRENE COURT OF JUDICATURE R T A -7 g R
~ IN THE EIGE COURT OF JUSI‘ICE B R
™ IN EQUITY ‘
" SUIT NO. E.94/1967 o TR
) C‘j;mTwEEN .. BARCLAYS BANK D.C.0, . - PLAINTIFF
ﬂ.f - AND ; “ - ADMINISTRATOR GENERAL
i ‘ " .. Administrator of the Estate of " ST ,
. Gifford Astor Reid (deceased) R ,’v:ffij.rigff ;{:f‘vﬂ. 1
gL o
RANSFORD HAMTLTON ' DEFENDANTS T
Ramon Alberga Q.,C. and Ronald Williams for the Plalntlff , BT e |
"David Muirhead for the first defendant s ‘ ’?‘[?{' ;
Leacroft Robinson Q.C. and Carl Rattray Q.C. for the B :
~ second defendant., . : i
;,L(v.«'JIgnuary 12,13;14,15,16,22,23, 1970. BT |
Cur adv. vult _
On LHTL ana, I?'?° JUdSment read. | T,
PARNELL J. On the 5th day of February, 1960, Gifford Astor Reid' then a
Land's Offlcer, executed an equltable mortgage by way of a charge in favour ) ;
- of the Bank charging as securlty, "All that parcel of land part of Barry F
and Lloyds in the parish of Saint Catherlne being lot numbered one hundred v é
w%(r aﬂa elghty on the plan of Barry and Lloyds and belng part of the land -
ot comprised in Certlflcate of Title registered in Volume 312 Follo 127. &
N }'v . Lot 180 was registéred‘on the 2nd April, 1958 in the names of #
Felix and Elizabeth Richards Bqt on the bth November, 1958, the said lands é
were transferred and registered in the name of the said Gifford Astor Reid f
who died intestate on the 2lst July, 1961. Lot 130 is registered at Volume E
864 Folio 98 of the Register Book of Titles. The charge on the property E
'(»\ of the deceased was evidenced in writing, ; . : L. S ﬁ
S "for advances méde to me or for my use or at ﬁ& o S g
request or for any moneys whatsoever which I may - >J
be llable to pay you toaether with interest at the
. rate of Seven and one half per cent per annum payable :
| quarterly or’ at such other rate and at such other §
- : R »” ,
times as the Bank may from time to time charge, , :
On the 8th February, 1960 the Bank lodved a caveat against the © T {
certificate of title in protectlon of the charge. The last two paragranh§ :
of the charge read as follows:= T - e
R '33 ) : . - .../”I
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"Y undertake whenever called upon to do so, to have
‘**'»’hprepared at my expense and to execute a legal
| mortgage to the satisfaction of your Solicitors.
This property is not encumbered in any way and I
undertake not to execute any encumbrance so long as
. this charge to Barclays Bank D.u.O; remains in force.
This charge shall be 1mpresged in the first '
instance with stamp duty to cover aﬂg 1ndebtedness of
- EIGHT HUNDRED Pounds but you shall be at liberty and
yoh are hereby eﬁpowered at any time or times hereafter
" (without any further licence or consent on my part and
whether before or after the sale of the said security
or any part thereof)to impress additional stamp duty
":f\hereon.to cover any sum or sums by which my indebtedness
to you may exceed EIGHT HUNDRED Pounds it being the
. intent hereof that his charge shall cover all sums to
any aggregate in which I may be indebted to you at}any

time," \ o ' A N

When Gifford Astor Reid (hereinafter referred to as the deceased)'>

dled_on the Zist July,‘1961 aged 31, he was indebted to the Bank.

- At. the trial, the statement of claim was amended to show an
indebtedness of 34862.09 to the.Bank inciuding outstanding loan end interest
said to be still accrulng at the rate of 9%% per centum.

The first defendant was granted Letters of Admlnlstratlon of all’

the estate of the deceased on the 19th November, 1964, On the 6th August,

" no time, lodged a caveat against the registered title of the owner of i

1965, the first defendant, by transmission, ﬁas registered as proprietor
of lot 180. On the 29th November, 1958 the deceased entered into an
agreement with the second defendant for the sale of lots 172 175 and 180.

Prior to the 29th November, 1958, the second defendant paid the

deceased a total sum of £310 in respect of the sale of the three lots-

above mentioned. When the deceased demanded more money on the sale, the
sepqnd defendent requested that the agreement for sale be put in writing -
and this was done on the 29th November, 1958. Between the 23rd June, 1952‘7

and the 5th August, 1960 the second defendant paid the deceased further

. sums "totalling £900 and having been put into possession of these lands,

the second defendant spent a lot of noney to.improve the lots which, from
the diagram which was put in by consent, indicate a contiguous run of
land from a planned land eettlemeht scheme. Lots 176,177,179 and part of

lot 178 are also owned by the second defendant. The second defendant, at
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}ggflots-172,l75 and 180, His reasons for his action will be feferred to in ~;fj § 

due course.

- ) . , ’ L
%

After prolonged dorrespondence between the partieé, a writ was
filed in July 1967, in which the Bank claims in substance:

(1) A declaration that it is the equitéblg mortgagee ;3' ” %2
of Lot 180 registered at Volume 864 Folio 98 ' s
<:, in the Register Book of Tiltes; |
i (2) That the said land i.e. lot 180 is charged o
with the payment of all monies owing from the R
~deceased to the Bank; S L,
' . o . S it
(3) That the Bank's equitable mortgage Tanks in i
'~ priority to whatever right the second defendant

may have in or over the said lahd;

(4)  Payment of all the moneys due to the Bank - .

o under the equitable mortgage with interest o

R . A - accruing and continuing to accrue at the rate
(;,F S - of 9% from the 15th June, 1967.

The deceaseq died insolvent. He left-a'vast emount of debt behind

him fogether with a widow and two young children. The evidence of the .

. ' Assistant Administrator Generél,_Hr.'Sibthorpe Beckett is that calculated ,?
as af June 1967, the assets of the deéeaéed weré put at roughly £766 while |
the liabilities (including adminstrative expenses) were ébout £3,700 with ' - ;v

a further claim of £368 from a Jamaican living in England, ~This cléim is =~ 7 {

- 8till being examined,

C

- did execute an equitable cha¥ge on lot 180 in favour of the Bank and that

The first defendantbin his defence has édmitted that the deceased |

< |
at the date of the death of the deceased the sum claimed was due and owing. 3
"But the first defendant has taken his stand. I shall therefore~quote ?
paragraphs 4,5 and 6 of his defence. -
'y “ . - ° .
L, The First-Named Defendant states that lot 180 , ‘r
| did and does form part of the Estate of GIFFORD E
. ASTOR REID but this Lot is the subject of Legal .
: (;/“. ‘ ' © Proceedings as to the competing Claims between ST RS ﬁ

the second-Named Defendant and the First-Named ': éi;
- Defendant. S B o :E,

5.  The First-Named Defendant will accordinglj [
submgf to the decision of the Court as to the R '{
TG !

ownership and/or disposition of Lot 180,

PR

6. ~ The First-Named Defendant states thatlhere are »
not sufficient as&®ts of the Estate of .the late -
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" GIFFORD ASTOR REID in his hands to answer the - =~

Plaintiff's or the Second-Named Defendant's

claim if established,

The second defendant has repudiated the clainm of tﬁe Bani, ke
claims that in law he is thé équitable owner of lot186,by virtue of the
agreement for sale dated the 29th November, 1958 to which I have alréady'
referred. He_counéer—claims fof a deciaration thét: |

(w) C (1) Lot 180 is his property he being the equitable
o owner thereof; o
~ (2) That his equitable right is prior in time to any
' right which the Bank may have acquired subsequent
to the 29th November, 1958. |
%hen the whole picture is examined therefore, the position seenms

to be Ehat there is a contest over priorities between two competing

équities; that is between the Bank and the second defendant touching lot

(:*;80 which was registered in the name of the deceased Gifford Reid: The
‘equities arose when - »
- (a) On the 29th November, 1958 he entered into an

.agreement for the sale of three lots 172,175 &

180 to the second defendant for valuable consideration,

(b) On the 5th February, 1960, when the deceased executed
~a charge in favour of the Bank without his disclosing
to Mr. Garsia the Bank's Branch manager at iay Pen

that lot 180 was encumbered in any way whatever.
<:> I' ' . The firstAHefendant has béén brought iﬁto the fray. He'is
prépared to submit - as it would be his duty - to‘the decision of the
 Court as to the ownership or disposition~of lot 180.
| Having gi;en a brief outline of the pleadings and thé issyes
involved,'I shall examine in more detail the faqts and.arguments that wefe

-~

put before me during the hearing lasting for seven days.

b)

In January, 1960 one Chresten Garsia was the manager of the

~_Bank's branch at May Pen. A customer of the Bank, Mr. R.J. Simms intro-

() ~

s&uged'the deceased Reid.to Mr. Garsia, The deceased who was then a
Land's_Officer in the government service was stationed in Clarendon.
" According to Mf. Garsia, "Mr., Reid applied for facilities, that is a loan
of £800, I asked if he had a security to offer and he said he owned turee
lots. .
registered/ OCne was at Barry-and Lloyds, St. Catherine."

- Mr. Garsia arranged with the deceased to visit the land at

~.

: Barry and Lloyds. This was about the end of January, He Garsia paid
: : - ocr/one
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‘one visit to a lot of land shown to him by the deceased. The visit was’

"made_about 5}30 P, wﬁen fhe deceased pointed out: g
. . 4 ;

"A héuse and about 3 acres of land." y

 The place which ﬁas‘shéwn to Mr, éérsia satisfied him'with,its setting,

risk'involved and panoramic view. To the Court, Mr: Garsia said:

"I would have bought this place myself because of its

s - ; scenic view, _
| -On the 5th February, 1960, the deceased'reéurned to the Bank
with a duplicate certificate'of title showing that he was then the:
" registered owner, by transfer, of lot 180.

"On the Plan of‘Barry;and Lloyds aforesaid and deposited
“in the office of Titles on tke 2nd December, 194k,

The égreement.between the deceaséd and Mr., Garsia on behalf of the Bank.
~ was this: he Reid was to open an account with 515 and gran£ed overdraft"
,<v}'facilities" up to £800 but until the security was in order, the overdraft
was not to exceed £200, Mr. Garsia was anxious to assist land oﬁners to':
ﬁ;ﬁld be used to~§stab1ish a chicken farm and thaf the sum of £150 was to
be baid every two months from the sale of "broilers, land and pigs."
There was one stipﬁlation which Mr. darsia made, The deceased wésito
effect an insurance on the house whiéh Hé saw on tﬂe lot oﬁef which the
;%Parge was made iﬁ t?e sum of 21,000 apd that the Bénk‘s interest should
se noted ;n the poiicy. The policy Qith its renewal receipts isfinj
:evidence.as Exhibit 6, To this I shall return later,

- Mr. Garsia wés carefully cross~exanined by Mr, Robinson concern~
ing the>one visit he made’to Barry & lloyds, the observafions he made of
what.ﬁas shown to hin and.his examination of thé iﬁsurance policyAwhich.

fhe deceased produced to the Bank, a cohditioﬁ Qf his obtaining the cfedit
. . . - ¥
fac}lities. I will quote parts‘of the evidence under cross-examination,

< S ) "He showed me a house on a rising; he took me up a

' ‘Parochial Road - dirt road. It was not on the main

rdad."
Q: ~ilhat sort of house you saw?
A: ®I do not remember the place well,"

urther on 1ir e cross-exanination he inued:
Furthe n th \ iinati he continued

‘Q; Did you come to any concludion abeout the value of the place?
A; "I valued th2 place at about £1CO per acre and the house
’ T ' -

e 1ot

develop their farms. He was told by thé deceased that the credit facilities
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was presumably worth abcut £1,700. I asked
him to have the house insured.®!

b

#hen the policy (Exhibit 6) was produced it was pointed out to Mr. Garsia

that what was insured was not lot 180 but o — B o

"main building the property of the Insured situate

at Lot No. 182 part of Barry and Lloyds, Gunaboa
(;v  Vale in the parish of 35t. Catherine constructed of
R concrete blocks with roof of zinc and having doors
"and windows of timber with glass'occupied solgly as

a Private Dwelling in the sum of Nine Hundred Pounds."

An outbuilding is also insured in the sum of £100.

There is an endorsement on the policy referred to as '"memo 2"

which reads as follows:

: o kN
WBarclays Bank D.C.0., May Pen are interested in the

within Insurance as mortgagees to whom loss if any

(v}- ' : under this Policy shall be payable in accordance with
the standard mortgage clause attached.™

Mr. Garsia at first said that he discovered the typographical
- error in the numﬁer of the lot and he had the matter adjusted. He did not
remember when it was corrected. This stand of Mr. Garsia.was lgter with-
drawn.v The final portion of his evidence in Cresg-examination by Mr,
Robinson is as follows:: |
"I now say I did not discover any error in the policy.

<~} B . I relied entirely on what Reid told me that the place
he tcok me was in fact .Barry & Lloyds."” ‘

Q: Did you see any signs of activity on the_lana he
showed you at_Barry & Lloyds?
A: "I do not remember,"
The Policy is dated the 10th February, 1960 but was effective from the 5th

February, 1960 to four o'clock in the'aftgrnoon of the 5th February, 1961,

]
On the 10th March, 1961, the policy was renewed for 12 months

<;;ﬁring on the Sth February, 1962. The renewal receipt shows .lot 182 as

the "covering property."”

¥hat seems to be clear beyond any argument is that the deceased

Reid either by artifice or by sheer negligence effected an insurance on lot

182 with house therecon although he was offering Lot 1830 as the security for

2

- the facilities to be granted., 4And owing to an oversight - I will put it on <

- this plane -~ Mr. Garsis accepted the poliey without discovering this undoubted
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#Q.efror élthough he Mr, Qaréia'was careful enough to.cauSe a ca#eét fo Be
1odged against the title of the owner of Lot 180, 4nd this state of affaifé
continued thro:éhout the period that the deceased was alive»%ﬁile thié.
transaction was being execﬁted between Mr. éarsia and the deceased, lot i80
was in the notorious possession of the éecénd defendant.,

}“ . ] ~ A play had been enacted wifh tﬁe deceasea as one of the actoré.
<;>e discussion befween Verges, Leonato and.Dogbérry in Shakespeare (Much

Ado about Nothing) comes to mind.

"Werg. Yes. I thank God I am as honest as any man

living that is an old man and no honester than I.

Dogb. ~ Comparisons are odorus: palabras, neighbour Verges.
Leon. Neighbours you are tedious.
" Dogb. A good old man sir; he will be talking; as they
\ ) say, when the age is in the wit is out=-----=-
j (:\ S and two men ride of a horse one must ride behind."

Act 3, Scene‘5.
o And as 'chitty' J. said in La'vefy v. Pursell (1888) 39 Ch.D, %P8
at p.517. , : : . : ,
o "Courts of justice ought not to be puzzled by such
old scholastic questions as to where 2 horse's tail
begins and where'it ceaées. You are oBliged to say,
*this is a horses's tail' at some time."
‘:In this matter of.cémpeting equitéblevinterests, one quéstion :
Which T will have to consider is this: if lot 180 is to be regarded as a
. borse Witﬁ Mr. Garsia for the Bank and the second défendént as the riders,
o who was thé first in tﬁe saddle? If there is a clear answer fo this
quastion, the ﬁext one will be this: has this rider been displaced from his
norigingl position by the other? |
Béfore I examine the evidenée-of thé:second defeﬁdant, a'piece

. L ]
of evidence from a witness called by the Bank must be referred to,

"<;) Mr. Harold Rémsay the present mananger of the May Pen branch of
the Bank has about 26 years service in banking and he has held managerial

] -position for about iO yéars. Under cross-examination by Mr. Robinson, .
Mr, Ramséy said that the purpose of a visit to premises (6n’§hich a charge

"+ is to be made for the purposes of a 1oan) is solely for valuation and for

.. no other reason.

L

~

The question and anfwer should be mentioned. 7
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Q: During 211 your experience with Barclays Bank

- is it to your knowledge that the purpose of

visiting premises of persons seeking a loan
from the Bénk is solely for valuation?
A: "That is right.®
The second defendant Hamilton is a builder and land owner. He is
(:;hstice of the Peace for St. Andrew‘and is a'Rﬁman Catholic. ﬁe left
school in the 6th standard with a.flair for wood-work in‘évery phase of it,
In 1957, the deceasea‘took hiz to Barry & Lloyds and showed him three lots
.1i.e..ﬁoé..l7é;175 and 18C. .Thé deceased claimed to be the o;ﬁer of these
lots and 6ffered to sell all fhree to Hamilton; Between the 8th February,.
1958 and th¢?9th August, 1958, Hamilton paid the deceased'thé'suﬁ of £310
as part pa&ment‘towards the purchase price of lots 172,175 and 180. The
?ee receipts are in evidence as Exhibit 11. According to the second
é:fendant on the 29th November,‘l958, the deceased_céme to him and asked for
'a'big amoﬁnt of money; |

" "apparently he was in some difficulty, I told
him that he would have to draw up a contract for

that amount of money."

The agreement (Exhibit 9) was duly.drawn up in the héndwriting of the
deceased aﬂd-signed by both of them.

| Barry & Lloyds laﬁd settlemént scheme in St. Catherine is a govern-
gwét project to assist farmers. The deceased, as a.Land's Officer wprkihg:
on the scheme, was ﬁot permitted to purchazse a lot in his_own name but he

N could accept a transfer from %n allottee o? the assignee of an allottee.

On the 29th November, 1958, the deceased gave the second defendant the
trahsfer forms relating to the lots to be signed. ﬁith regard to lot 180,
the deceased tcld the second defendant that one Richards would be trans-
ferfing title to him Reid. !

(”} ' In truth, lot 180 was formerly registered in the names of Felix

Richards and Elizabeth Richards his wife but, as I have alread& mentioned,
the transfer to the deceased Reid was effected on the 4th November, 1958;
I shall ré?urﬁ to the Agreement’for Sale. It is legibly written and shows

; signes of intelligence. EQethﬁe craft of the d;aughtsmgn is not Iackiﬁg.
The folloﬁing varticulars, inter alia, are recited:

(1) ‘That the vendor owns“lot 180,172 and 175;

(2) That the purchaser agrees to buy the said 1anq§;

- - eso/conpricing
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(3)

v )

(5)

T

comprising 262 acres more or less for the sum

of One thousand six hundred and eighty pounds

(51 680);

~

That the vendor acknowledges receipt of Six

‘Hundred and ten pounds (£610) as part payment on

account.

That the t1t1eo for the saiad land are to be

presented on the payment of the last instalment.

Pate of possession 29/11/58 and taxes to be

adjusted to date of possession,

Cemee

.Under the agreement, the balance of the purchase price gft£i070 was to be

paid at the rate of Fifty pounds per month. Hamilton, the purchaser

therefore had roughly 21 months calculated from November 29, 1958 to

compléte his payment and to obtzin his title.

(1)

(5)

(6)

kG

(8)

(2)

)
(&)

and an annual Chrlstmas treat for children was

After Hamilton was>put in possession of the three lots, he

/ “exercised rights of ownership by doing the following in relation to lot 180:

He applied to St. Catherine Parish Council for water.

Pipes were laid to connect the premises with water

from the public supply in the area;

A site was cleared for building a héuse and in

January, 1959, the construction began. By April, e

- 1959, a dwelling house, a raid's room and a store-

room - three separate buildings - were éompleted
at a cost of nearly £3,000., The cost for erecting

the house was about £2,200 excluding the cost of

the builder's time. The second defendant built the

house himselfy
A pig farm and a chicken coop were established;
Two water tanks were erected;

A branch of the Jamaica Agricultural Society called

the"Barry and Lloyds JAS Branch" was established,

Meetings of the Society were held in the dwelling t

house. The second defendant was elected president
of the branch; , ~

A Roman Cathonlic Mission was established at the
dwelling house. About once per month, Fr. Charles

Everle cenducted nass;

Distribution of .free food for the poor of the

district was conducted from the .premises (ot 180)

T ogpees -

begun at the expense of the second defendant;

-
4 caretaker for the premises was apnointed.

T

.fl/Alphanso
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Alphanso Richards otherwise ‘called 'son son"

« was the first caretaker. Richards started to
"~ live on the premises after the buildings were
erected in April 1959. He occupied the maid's

roonm,

When the Branch of the Jamaica Agricultural Society was established

<;—»r resuscitated - as claimed, by Mr, Cecil Morrison a w1tness called by the
second defendant - there was a well attendﬂd meeting which was addressed by
Mr. “illie Henry who was then Vice~President of the Jamaica Agrlcultural
Society. This function was held in the middle of 1959. |
/

Several visits were paid to the pig and chicken farns by ¥Mr.

- Cecil Morrison who was then the Chief Agricultural QOfficer for the southern

division of the Ministry of Agriculture and Lands. The dwelling of Hamilton '

was used by Mr. Morrison and St, Catherine Parish Agricdltural Officers as

_t3<;g training ground for farmers in‘the area. 'Through the advice of Mr.
Morrison, the second defendant secured a subs:dy under the farm development
‘scheme. Mr. Cecil Morrlson who is now the co-~ ordlnator for Rural Land
Anthorltles has glven some 1nd1cat10n of the eommon knowledge in and around
Barry & Lloyds that the place of the uecond defendant was used as a kind of
forum for agricultural activities. 1In answer.to the Court he said:

"JAS meetings at Mr., Hamilton's place were summoned
N ‘ for latce evenings coming on to night fall, occasionally
fﬁ(;y} . © " I would drop in a number of them. The average

attendance at these meetings was about 30 to Ls people.".
éﬁ The unchallenwed evidence, therefore, which I accept is that the
second defendant hav1ng entered into possession of lot 180 in November, 1958
openl& andlpo the knowledge of a wide circle of people exerciSed powers of
.ownersniﬁ in and over the said lot. ﬂhile ne personally did not live
éermanently in the'dwelling honse which he had construtted, his acts of
benevolence, rcllgous persuaulon and his farm development which he practised

~

ﬁi<:3n that very lot were notorious.

According to Plutarch it was a law of Solon that man must not
speak ill of the dead. This law is clothed in the latin adage "de umortuis
nil nisi bonum." In this case, however, it is difficult for one to stick to

the letter of the mazim. The deceased Reid appesred to have practised a

~j;;'fraud on the Bank., ‘'/hen on the Sth\February, 1960, he gave the 3Bank and
equitable charge over lot 180 behind the back of the second defendant, ho
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was purporting to offer as a security that which in equity arnd in good

conscience he knew was not his. And for the purpose of securing the over- .

draft or "the facilities" as the bank calls it, the deceased "insured” lot
182 with house thereon. The extent of the activities of the deceased may
be gathered from a piece of evidence which the first defendant gave, DMr.

\ <;ueckett has said that a claim against the estate of the _deceased has oeen

made by the Registrar of Titles. If I am permitted to quote in the former

currency of Jamaica as I have already done, the Registrar of Titles is
claiming the sum of £1,430, 8.8. in respect of SR

"a fraudulent transfer of land to the deceased on
his application followed by a mortgage thereon to-

one Charles Duckie.”
This fraudulent transfer was effected on the 13th October, 1960,
<: s a result Mr. Duckie was compensated from the Assurance Fund established
pursuant to the Registratlon of Titles Law, Cap. 340,

Before I proceed to.examine certain submissions wbicn Mr. Alberga
made on behalf of the{Bank, I shall mention a part of the evidence of the
second defendant under the,cross—examination of Mr. Alberga.

| Q: Did you know about registered lands?® |
A: "I know a little about it. I got to know ié from
Reid and from one or tﬁo other land officers.”
'ﬁé(;;bealing with the questicn of title for lot 130, the cross-examination
3
continued:
LN | Q: If you had known that lot 180 was the subject of a

registered title in November 1558 what would you

have done?

" A: "I would ask for the title. If I did not get it, I
would.inquire about it.," '
v _ f
Q: what else would you have done? '

N Az "I would not do anything else beside waiting. _I

did not see any danger in waiting. I had a properly

il
: stamned contract for the three lots.

The- evidence shows that whereas the Bank took stens to enter a

caveat against the title of the owner of lot 180, the second defendant did

nothing in this regard to protect the contract of sale concerning the thres

<

‘lots including lot 180. As to the knowledge of the second defendant con- N

—— R L4
cerning the entering of a caveat, he said this under cross-examination:

-~

— : ' ) eeo/rocently
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ly'recently I heard atout caveat. I heard that

caveat gives protection to title but I did not
know of this in 1958 or 1959.%

Under further cross-examination:
- Q: Did you know of 'caveat'! in any sense in 195972

A: "I cannot be able to say how much I knew about it

1)%:;3 . | 'in 1959. Inll959, I thought I was quite secure.”

i ” | :Thé ordinary man in Jamaica'- and I speak partiﬁularly of the age
group fhirty five and over ~ was trzined from ycuth to observe éertain
-precepts. He was taught among other thin:s to rely on, and“ﬁut hié con~-
fidence in, the assurance, words, and éractice of the village parson, the
teacher and the public officer in the form of a government officer.

' | ._,The‘Qord of any of these gentlemen. uttered on an occasion which *.

- calied‘fo: the display of honeéty and seriousness would be accepted and

«K;/F relied on by the ordinary citizen of the iaAd without any suspicion or’
doubt whatsoever. | |

It‘could §e - it is not néceséary for me to attempt aﬂ& finding ;
that that confidénce in public officers which was common among the peéple
about 25 years ago, may not be so pronounced today.

I accept the evidence of the defendant Hamilton that iﬁ 1958 and
1959 he did not know'the purrose of -a caveat in rélétion to the title of

- wxv'lénd and that he thought he was secure in his iransaction with the'deceaséd

Reid, It-is no secret thatthere are.maﬁy tﬁousands of our peopie who know‘

‘nothing about the use of a caveat; To many, that word sounds like a

foreign word or phfase. Perhaps, as the society gets more.sophisticated

even_without a corresponding advance in liberal educatioﬁ} mattérs perfain—
ing fo the transfer of laﬁd, registered or unfegistered, the incidents of
fransfer; and agreements for sale of iapd will becone moréAaccepted‘and

apgreciated. | .

"Mr. Alberga has argued that this is a "test case' to determine

Afhis question: How good is an equitable mortgagze in Jamaica by deposit
of titlé déeds?‘ In his closing address, he states that there are certain
"questions which the Court nust détermine: Briefly summarised they are as
follows{’ B |

(a) 1Is the agreensnt between Reid (deceased) and Hamilton
(second defendant)“dated 29/11/53, valid and

enforceable in its entirety?

- ; - ees /(D)
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ff* - (b) If yes, then does the provision of Sec.70 of Cap.340
f‘ S _ (Registration of Titles Law) apply to the facts of

n this case? To put it in another form, is the Bank |
deemed to have had notice of the second defendant's ' ' " 1;;, |
equity it being first in time. IR |

(c) Is'the fact of the second defendant's actual possession

equivalent to the lodging of a caveat or does the

principle ehunciated in the Australian case of Butler v,
Fairclough (1917) 23 C.L.R. 78 apply to the case?

N
S
L H
.

(@) Even if the second defendant was in possession between e E
 the 29th November, 1958 and the hth February, 1960 - e
""" (the day before the Bank obtained the equitabie charge) | .

does the fact that he was dealing with registered land
cause his equity to be postponed because of his failure

. "to lodge a caveat against the title of the registered

owner? ' . ) : , o SV

-

! - . Mr. Rattray for the second defendant made certain submissions

(1) That the Bank and Hamlltoq each had an equltable

‘1nterest in ard over lot 120 and that since the

lodging of a caveat is not equivalent to registration, ' | _ﬁ
there is a competition between unregistered and f
E

unregistrable interests.

(2) That Section 70 of Cap. 340 only refers to an interest e !
. ‘which can be registered and which was not, But in » S
™ ‘ + .any event, that section only protects a person o _ , ' ;ﬁ

;“QVJ'f I obtaining registration.

(3) That if the Bank took its interest with notice actual

~ : or constructive of Hamilton's interest, then the Bank

| despite any caveat lodged or search made would not be
_promoted over the interest of the former which was

first in tine.
The burden of Mr, Alberga s argurent aé I’understand it, is

that since the second defendant did not lodge a caveat to protect his v

»rk:m-lnterest then his prior interest is postponed to that of the Bank which

protected its own interest bylodging a. caveat on the 8th February, 1960 o #

The second defendant is therefore to be pendllsed for bls fallare to warn

the Bank“on the 3th February by neans of his caveat, that there was in

existence an interest in lot 180 vested in him,
There are certain countries in which specific legislation
| | :
‘may be relied on in arguing that if a '"mimoer interestgd” which would include
N ,

——— -
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,fﬁ an equitable interest in and over registered land is not protected by sone

entry on the register, then priority will be postponed to a later equitable ) . ;
interest which is lodged for entry even if the assignee of the later interest 3 I
knows of. the existénce of the former. See for example ‘the English ‘Land ':-f. L

Registration Act, 1925, sections 3 and 102, Counsel's irdustry has not

5 discovered any statute in Jamaica and I am not aware of any which has any
7

SRRN

T (\/brovision similar to the English provision.
There is no evidence before me that it is the settled practice in

Jamaica for an owner of equitable interest in registered land to lodge a

caveat, It hae been proved that as‘far as Ehe Bank is concerned it is the

practice to visit the premises of persons seeking a. loan solely for the

purpose of valuation and thereafter té.lodge a caveat with the Registrar of

. : : “r
Titles after & search has been made for any prior encumbrance., But the

Y

B . practice of the Bank does not convert it to a regular and established

purch&ser;  Caveats under the Registratipn'of Titles Law, Cap. 340 may be

S ———

<~ divided under three'heads, namely;
(a) Caveat against registration of land (Sec.42)

(b) Caveat by the Trustee in Bankruptcy where the
' - proprietor of any lénd, lease ‘or charge is

s . . adjudged a bankrupt (Sec. 132)...

™ .+ Le) Caveat by any beneficiary or other person

yj(,,; " claiming an interest in the land (Sec. 133)

But the owner of an eqpitable inferes£ érotected by the lodging
of a caveat does not énjoy a better priority than he.othe;WiSe woﬁld_have
'ehjoyed merely because he lodges a caveat. The scheme under the Registrd-
tion of Titles Law does not seek to postpone the interest of a person>who
tféils fo.lodge a caveat except in the instance mentioned in section 132~o
.the Law. It is this: shere the registe;ed proprietor of lahd becomes.a‘

/«pankrupf,,the Trustee in Bankruptcy may forward to the Registrar of Titles
) . . L

“an office copy of the prqviSional or_aBsolute order made‘against the
proprietor, The Registrar of Titles is now put on his'guard against
: registeripg any instrument touching the bankrupt's property unless he

~informs the Trustee in Bankruptecy in writing. The relevant portion of the

section states: . . _ N R .

"practice between an ordinary registered a=d owner and an ordinary interested S

——s




"If the trustee chall omit or neglect to make S e o

application aforesaid, or to lodge a caveat under. ' . -ft. i
-w.the general provision relating to caveats hereinafter  ‘}; é;
contained, within seven days after the Registrar , e
shall have notified him, by a letter delivered or 5
registered, that application has been made for the . N T

-registration of an instrument concerning property

L - (to be in such notice described) standing in the = | }
(\J) ' ’ Register Book in the name of the bankrupt, such '
' ingtrument may be registered, and thereupon shall’

not be affected by the order of adjudication either

at law or in equity." e

Pl In developing his argument that the second defendant's prior

V_ interest is postpoﬁed to .that of the Bank, Mr. Alberga has relied heavily on

certain statutory provisions and decided cases under the Torrens Syétem of | ' _ff'

land registratiOn in Australia. He has argued for example that section 70
o (ij; Cap. 340 is similar to section 43 of the Transfer of Land Act, 1954 of

he State of Victoria. And in particular on the question of priorities, if

any, conferred by the lodging of a.caveat, he has relied on Butder v.

Fairclough (1917) 23 C.L.R. 78 (a decision of the Suprene Court of Victoria). | ‘jr%
It is merely out of admiration for his attractive argument why I
shall.spend a little time in examining some of the points he has raised from

. . . ) . 4
an examination of the Australiam authorities. I must confess, however, that N

'«5. like Lord Jemkins in Chisholm v. Hall (P.G.) (1959) 7,9.L.R. 164, I get - f?
g (»)itfievor nio assistance from the Torréns System.l Wheﬁ Robert Torrens in 1853
was.appointed Registraf_General of.Déeds in South Aﬁstralia, he found thé
fﬂK, position dealing Qith the title to land "cémplex, uncertain and ruinously : ’ ,i
y‘extrayagant." There wefe no natural or arfificiél boundaries of land énd

where thg settlement itself Qas of vast extent - as it usually was - a

'3quafter would move his flocks and himself according to the season and the

state of the feed, Every root of title was deemed to be in the Crown and the

)

§£atute of Limitations was not applicable in proving title.

In Chisholm v. Hall, the correct interpretation of Sections 67 and
69 of the Registration of Titles Law, Cap. 340 and how these sections may i |

~be reconciled if there is a conflict, came up for consideration before the

o g v

. Judicial Committee of the Rrivy Council. Lord Jenkins (delivering the o
L : " _ C s
Judgment) said this (see p. 169 of 7 J.L.R.) 3 o

. . B & b
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"The plaintiff's contention on this part of the
case demands reference aéfsome length to the
provisions of the Registration of Titles Law.
This Law ié one of many enactments for the
registration of titles in force in this country
and in various narts of the Commonwealth and

Empire., But these enactments are by no means

"uniform in their terms, and it was agreed in the

course of the argument that no useful purpose
would be served by comparing other enactments
with the Jamaican law, or citing cases decided
on other enactments as-dids to the construction

of the Jamaican law."

In my view the Registration of Titles Law, Cap. 340 is by no

means uniform in all its terms, purpose and sociology with its Australian

counterpart, An Australian decision on any given vrovision which is said

<;Jfbe'5imilar to the Jamaican statute cannot bodily be accepted here as an

authority without careful examination.

Section 70 of the Registration of Titles Law, states:

"Exéept'in the case of fraud, no person contracting
or dealing with, or taking or proposing to take a
transfer, from the proprietor of any registered land,
lease, mortgage or charge, shall be fequired or in
any manner concerned to enqqipe_or ascertain the
circumstances under, or the consideration for, which

such proprietor or any previous proprietor thereof

was registered, or to see to the épplication of any

purchase or consideration money, or shall be affected

by notice, actual or constructive, of any trust or

-unregistered interest, any rule of law or equity to

the contrary notwithstanding; and the kno&ledge that"

any such trust or unregistered interest is in existence

'shall not of itself be imputed as fraud, "

. 1
Mr, Alberga has argued that by virtue of Section 7C, the Bank is

\ <: ?t affected by any notice actual or constructive of the second defendant's

~interest{ Further; he argues that the Bank may still clzaim the benefit of

the section although it is not claiming as a registered proprietor, It
. 5 .

seems to me that section 70 cannot be examined in isolation.” It must be

construed in its own setting, that is to say as a relevant provision in

understanding Section 69 which 'gocs before it:

Section 69 says in part: : B

fp—— I
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YNotwithstanding the existence in any other person
.. of any estate or interest, whether derived by grant
from the Crown or otherwise, which but for this Law
night me héld to be paramount or to have-priority,
the prpﬁrietor of land or of any estate or interest
in land under the operntion of this Law shall, except
o in case of fraud, hold the same as the same may be
i (vﬁ' ' " described or jidentified in the c¢ertificate of title,
subject to any qualification that may be specified
in the certificate, and to such incumbrahces as maj
. "~ © be notified on the folium of the Register Book
constituted by his certificate of title, but absolutely
free from all'other incumbrances whatsoever, except
the estate or interest of a proprietor cleiming the
same land under a prior registered certificate of
title, and except as regards any portion of land that
‘ may by wrong description of parcels or boundaries be
ﬁ <:;f o ~ included in the certificate of title .or instrument
' J evidencing the title of such proprietor not being a
purchaser for valuahle consideration or. deriving from

"or through such a purchaser."

, o An indefeasiﬁle titlé, subject to Eertain qualifications, is
obtained by a.regiStered proprietor’uniesé fraud can be alleged and proved
agaipét hi@. This is what section 69 ﬁas~provided, In order to remove any
doubt as to what may be regarded as "fraud,' section 70 gives a list of what

o - -

N <:} "shall not of itself be impﬁted as‘fraud."

.
L4

It seems to mé that section 70 is subordinate to, and explanatory of, section
69. A pefson who is not a registered proprieﬁor of a registrable interest
cannot claim the benefit of section 70, He must first be regisfered without
ary taint of ffaud before he can claim protection from what shqll'hot of
itself be imputed as fraud.

The majority of the Australiaﬁ aufﬁorities uﬁder section 43 of the

Land Transfer Act, 1954 (Victoria) which I am told is similar in terms to

Siiﬁeétion 70 supra, support the.view that only a person who has become
registered @ay gain immunity from that section; ‘For exémple, the text book
on the Transfer of Land Act 1954 (Victoria) by i'r, P. Hoerlin Fox LL.3.,
Lectﬁrer in Conﬁeyancing at the Universitx of Melbournec ééy§ this at p. &3
and with reference to section 43, |

"The section itself says nothing about registration, S
but if it is regarded as in the main declaratory of
the effect of the preceding secticn it follows that

. . : . - .
it applies only to a parson who has become registered.”

LT ' ’ ’ AR
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Mr. Alberga has referred to the dec151on of Clarx, C J. in Re

. Hone % Co's Petltlon (1903), 2 Stephens Renort p. 1975. This is a local |
)
» declslon based on section 56 of the Registration of rltles Law of 1898
That'Sectlon is now sectlon 70 of Cap. 340. I necd not ¢xamine the

particular facts of that case. But I'will quote what I will regard as an

Ny.r”

" obiter dictum of the learned Chief Justice at p. 1976.
.lsxg{l; - ‘; B ¢ think that, zt any rate, where a purchaser has
obtained a transfer in the prescribed g, and

- T o has paid his noney before receiving any notice -

- either actual or constructive, of & prior R

unregistered equltable char;e, the sectlon protects

‘-":;-”": ~ him in his purchas= "
' If thls means that where 2 person for valuable conslderatlon becomes

- reglstered as a transferee of an 1nterest in land before he receives any

—a .

'unotlce (actual or constructive) of an earller and unreﬁlstered equltable
. .1nterest he is protected by the eectlon, then T am in complete agreement
'_wlth'the learned judge.: Any other view would cause.me to doubt the.
Qg;:correctness of the constructlon placed on the then 56th section.
. I "hold that the Bank cannot clzinm the protectlon whlch the 70th
section_of the Registration of Tltles Law confers for the simple reason
' that when on ‘tHé 8th Fobruary it lodged a caveat pursuant to section 135, ~
':thismfaot did”ndt'fHereby;make“the'Banﬁ é“fégigféfed propriétor of its™ "
_d(;}guitable charge. Under the Law,'a.mortgagee may only be registered as~/
' protrietor.if hevproposes to exercise his power'of'sale1 if any, Whion the‘
:,f'mortgage instrument may contain or if the original charge was made in
accordance with section 93Aof the Registration of fitles Law;.
But if T am wrong in-so.holding, it seems to me tnat there.is a
. statutory prov131on under the Conveyanc1ng Law, Cap. 73, which the Bank
' has falled to surmount. That every_man is presumed to be honest untll the
?_Pnoontrary is proved is not -“even if it is & presumption‘known in barnking
1ransactlons - recognlzed eithcr at 1aw ‘or in equlty.
‘. Mr. Harold Ramsay, a w:tness called by the Bant said 1n'ansWe“
| to the Court
t"The Bank does:not employ private.dectives because

sl T 7T ge normally deal with reliasble people.”

pe

.- The purchaser for value who obtains a legal estate without notice of a
© . prior equitaltle interest takes his interdst free of the equity which may

.vs/be
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be claimed, 1In such.a case equity folloﬁs the law because the pufchaser's"
conscience is'-in no way affected by the equitable interest. ‘But a pur~ , ;
éhaser éf an equitable interest is affected by ﬁotice aptual or constructive.

The Conveyancing Law (Cap. 73) puts thisj;ule in a statutory |
form; Section 5 (1) of the Law stateé:

"ﬂw\‘\ ) . R .
Qv,) ° "A purchaser shall not-be prejudicially affected

by notice of any instrument, fact or thln*, unless -

(a) it is within his own knowledwe or would have come

to his knowledge if such inquiries and inspection

had been made as oughf"%easbnably to have bheen

made by him."l
"Purchaserﬁ in this provision would include a mortgagee and "mortgage"
would include any charge on property for securing money or money's wofth. T
Under sectlon 70 of the Reglstratlon of Titles Law, a proprietor which would ' o

(
\\znclude a mortgavee

‘"shall be affected by notice, actual or constructive

of any trust or unregistered interest"
unless he can claim the immunity which that section confers.

“Jhen Mr. Garsia was taken to the settlement by the deceased Reid

the lot pointed out to him was either the said lot 180vintendgd to be

charged or it was not. If it was lot 180G, then Mr. Garsia would have scen

M\

—-gigns of an elaborate development including the establishment of a pigcery
7 A ' ' '

“and a'pqulfry farm, the very purpose for which the "facilities™ were
requifed.f Mr. Garsia would then be put on his inguiry and it would have

™ been his duty to probe a little further than what he actually did.

If it was not lot 180 that he had inspected, he failed in my
75 judgment to make any reasonable inquiries as to where or what had been
shown to him.
| A simple question to any.ordinary person in -the area would havé
M;brought the answier that the second defendant_was and is the owger'and

. a .
occupier of lot 180 and that it was/mecting place for several activities to

which I have already referred.. And even if Mr. Garsia was astutely led
astfay by thé deceased when this alleged "inspection' was made, he lost a
© clear opportunity to discove; what I will euphe&istically call an %error:
| by his-ﬁot detecting in time the fact that lot 182 was ins ured as the
.éecurity snd not lot 180‘as he had requested. The deccased was succesSfﬂﬁ'-
~in practising his hocus éocus on the Bank and could have beeg{detected in
‘ - . - L eeoftine
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f{ time, if to use the language of the Conveyancing Law,

"such inquiries and inspections had been made-

as ought reasonably to have been made,
The open and well established possession and occupatioﬁ of lot 180 by the
second defendant gave the Bank constructive notice of his righfs agd.
y - interest.
<\1: 0 °  Before I refer to ¥hevargument of Mr. Alberga CAncerning the

priorities of equitable interests, I shall refer briefly to one of the

= ot

mquéstions which he posed for my consideration. It is contended that the

agreément of the 29th November, l958 cannot be relied on unless it can be
shown that specific performance would be decreed in respect of lots 172,
175 and 180 mentioned in the sa2id agreement. Some evidence was tendered to

-N \
show that the deceased Reid had no interest, and never had any, in lots 172

j (;Qnd.175. Assuming that this is so, would it affect the equitable interest
s . . _ :

| ]
of the second defendant in and over lot 180? Only one answer, in my

judgmeﬁt could be given and that is ‘no,"

LT P TP
"

A man bannot‘give away what he has not got. He cannct sell what 1l
is not his or what is not in his power to dispose of. \But if in attemptihg
~ to disposelof what is not his, he.includes in the sale whet is his property,

“there’ can be no valid reason in law or in equity why he cannot be held to B e

his agreement in so far as the sale touches what_belbngs to him. Ingenious
; <~\$ the aréqment of.Mr. Alberéa is .on this point, I must reject it as being
»;nsound aﬁd fallacious. |
. In exqmining'Butlerv='Fairélough to which I have already referred,_ﬂ
ﬂr. Alberga submitted fhat in case of a contest between twp equitable:
élaimaﬁts the first in time, all other things being equal, is entifled to‘

p;iority. But there must be an eqﬁality and the first who is first in time

nay lose his pfiority by any act or omission which had or might have had,

L

the effect of inducing a claimont later in time to acﬁ to his prejudice. - j
/ (»léfgne wili quarrel with this proposition. 1In fact it ié another way of ) b
stating'the well known makim of equity‘"qui prior est'tempbre, potiori?iré.” ’&
That is: where the equities.nre equal, the first in'time shall prevail.. :
'Ceftain facts were»pfoved‘in Butler v. Fazirclough one of them ;ﬁf:_i

being that the Registrar of Titles did not give notice to the plaintiff

hiat the defendant had lodged for registration a transfer which the

—— rd

defendnnt h~d previously withdrewn., The Registrar had taken the view that

- ess/n
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a caveat which the plzintiff had lodged was no longer in force and as 2

(54

result the defendaont's interest was registered, Tﬁe plaintiff had a charge
over prepe;ty and the defendant_became the assignee of 2 leaee subject to =
mortgage but the defendant,.hating searched the register of titlee, did not
« see any other incumbrenee endorsed agdinst the title; in other_words, he ot
;S;«&as not aware of the plaintiff's ¢charge. Judgment vias giveh'for the defendant_
and oﬁ sppeal, by 2 ﬁajority, the judgment was affirmed. I am unable to
extract any partlcular principle from thle-case._ Apart from the fzct that
6ertaln spec1flc provisions under the Torrens System were rev1ewed, it seems
to me'thatithe decision of the lower court and the Court of Appeal can be
.suppofted on the simple.ground,that without any fraud, the defendant was ra
fegisteted'as a proprietor ana therefore he could take his interest subject

“ﬁo any prior interest which was noted on the register and free from any which - %
D, had not been entered or protected.

The’case of Abigeil v, Lapln, (1934) All E.R. Rep. 720 (an appeal

B

" to the Prlvy Counc1l from the High-“ourt of Austrﬁlla) was dlscussed at some uﬂ
length by Mr, Alberga. I have read the report of the case, "It is not out of

dlsrespect if I say that I can get no help whatsoever from Abigail and Lapin %

b
moreso in view of the particular facts in the one before me and the flndlngs :
which I have already made. I need not examine the facts in the Australian ?3

(;’Ase. Mr. Robinson who seems to have mude a detailed examantlcn of the -  {

Australian zuthorities cited by Mr., Alberge contends thﬂt they all refer to

“actions in which the Pparties ned a reglstrable 1nterest. Mr. Robinson's

3
Ay BRI R R o

.view may be correct, It is untenable for_one to argue that whereas registra-
tiocn has the effect of destroying an equity apdva caveat has the effect of

protecting the equity by delaying or postponing registration, nevertheless

*

i b b

a caveat also defeats or postpones a prior equity although the interest

nrotected can'enly defeat or destroy when it is registered. -

The other authorities to which Mr. Alberga referred have been

considered by me, In my judgment they offer mc no assis itance as a safe

A
.
L gre L ORI Y

guides 3But he referred to a proposition, presumably a reference in an

Austfalian study in Adams on Land Transfer Act 1958, p. 355. The proposition

is: that‘ﬁhefe there sre two innocent partics to a fraud, the one who by i :
‘-ﬁis eeéligence madevit.possible for the fraud to be committed should be the -

s

ferer, 1 detcct this proposition as a variart of the famous dictum of

T.R., 6%, 70 when he said:

Cfshhurst J, in Lickbarrow v. tnson (1737) 2
B M : oo/ RETIVTEY
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twherever cne of two innocent: persons must o M e

suffer by the acts of a third, he who has

“ enabled such third person to occasion the
) ioss‘must sustain it."

This dictunm has not escaped criticism. Sometimes it is accepted as it is

"and other times it is varied or explaine?l.

Lord Halsbury, for instance; in Henderson & Co. v. Williams (1895)

e et TR P P ity POy R S e SRR s S

C;?'Q;B. 521 p.529 adopted the language of an American judge and said:
’ "V¥hen one of two innocent persons must suffer,

for the fraud of a third, he shall suffef, who,

WY P

- by his indescretion, has enabled such third

person to commit the fraud." _ o .

And lLord Lindley in Farquharson Bros. & Co. v. King (1900-3)

All E,R, Rep. 120 at p. 125D said: ;
“This dictum has never, to my knowledge, been
"applied where nothing has been done by one of
. the ihndcénf parties which has, in fact, misled
<‘;‘ N o the other," '

"It seems to me that whaf Lord Lindley is saying is this: some positive act -

or omission must be traced to one of the innocent parties in the trans-

action and the_faultAof that~party must have been the proximate cause for gw
the ‘other to be led astray or into some error which he would not have made

but for the act or omission -in question. -

The Bank in my view is unable to point to any act or omission on =

W\Fhe_parf pf the second defendant which waé the proximate cause for its.‘ ;

Jéréntigg the facilitiecs to‘thé deceased Reid. And even if it is assuméd-

that the second defendant was requiréd to lodge a caveét on or shortly ; ‘ I

after the 29th November, 1958, on the facts, it is clear that the May Pen |
Bank manager (Mr. Garsia) did not do enough to ascerfain the true state

of affairs. The claim of the Bank, thefefore, against the second defendant

must fail.

Mr. Muirhezd on behalf of the first defendant was critical of -~ . - by

}_(mthe attitude which the Bank has displayéd; he has argued that the interest DT |
éhargédAlooks exceésive and it is really interest on interest'which has | |
been computpd} Hé contends "that -the Bank was informed before proceedings
were‘bfought that the estate was irsolvent., . o _ o _ -lL"L
- VOn the questioﬁmofycosts, Mr. Muirhezd has arguéd that in any

.evenf,‘fhe Bank should pay the first defendant's costs. He submits that Z

N ‘ e .
since the BZank had been informed that +the estzte was insolvent and in view

< ees/ct
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/éof the fact that tﬁe flrst defendant h as admltted the debt vhlch the .
deceased owed, there was no necessity for bringing in t&e Adelnlstrator

General or perolstlng in the claim aﬂalnst him,

I have eyamlned the Bundle of Correspondence (Lxhlblt 1) dith a

s IS

view to ascertalnlng whether there is any good’ ground for any of the

criticisms which Mr. Mulrhead has made. I shall summarise the result of my -

+

e .k iamm e wre s e e emm e s e . ma b e ima .
e B e SRR R P O A r R PR R PR Y .o b
n | N

4

| (_}amlnatlon as follows.

(1) At least from the 1hth March, 1962, the Bank knew -
' ‘that the deceased died on the 21st July, 1961
" (page 1 of bundle).. The amount then owing wae‘
J_"one thousend one hundred poundé, thirteen
'shi;lings and nine perce (£1100,.13.9) together with
;} "interest accruing thereon to date of'peyment." The

dnterest originally charged was "at the rate of e T
seven and one half per cent payable quarferly or
'<wf '-‘n'ﬁl- ;7at such other rate and at such other times as the

- .. .. Bank may from time to time charge."

- (2) On the 17th April, 1964, the Solicitors of the . . .. . [
" Bank advised the first deferndant that it was the AU f &W
' duty of the latter to administer the estate pursuant -

to section 12 of the Administrator General's Law

‘ (Chap. 1). A claim is made on ‘behalf of the Bank B if
‘%7: o e ,for the.sum of £1,311.1.5 "together with interest : S _;“‘J}EL
o fat 8%, per annum from the 5th November 1963.". - g;hj».u,;s~;”'

3 - Notw1thstend1ng that the Bank knew from Harch S
<w}-é'u~. ", 1962 that the deceased was dead and that therefore | ’ oo b

the personal obllgatlon on hls part could no longer

: be performed by hﬁm, the rate of interest is _ ,;_'?:f L : j !
" dncreased. No final balance is. struck in the books L
of of the Bank as a result of the death of the . ;:e;' ' l

. customer (Reid). The sum owing continues to increase

at quarterly reotS.

s e— & ———t
———

. " (3) oOn the 15th June, 1964 the first defendant advised

“the Bank's Solicitors inter alia that he.intended

. e
P

'(”13: L o to apply for Letters of Administration; that the . L
A . land at Barry & Lloyd's registered at Volume 864 - ;e-;{'?*f'ﬁfﬂ
.. "1 ‘folio 93 that is, lot 180, was in dispute "as his o

\ - —

.- widow claims that this land wes sold by the

deceﬂsed prior to his death, to one ¥r. Hamilton! (page 7).

'(4) On the 23rd June_rl9 L, the Solicitors acknowledged

receipt Jf the fi rft de fendant s letter and

'threhtened to institute proceedln¢s (on instructions) B R

ecs/fOT




ok -

#for an Order for Sale of the deceased's

wproperty at Barry and Lloyds and to have you

(5)

made representative ad litem etc. (page 8).

On the L4th September, 1964, the first defendant
advised the Bank's Solicitqrs that ke had taken
steps to file an application for Letters of
Administration., He further asked for a post-
ponemeﬁt of an& further proceedings in connection
with the assets of the decezsed and that after -

Letters of Administration have been obtained

- "eonsideration will be given to the claims of ..

(6)

(7)

18)

(9)

(10)

your clients under the letter of charge held by
them'" (page 9)

On the.5£h January, 1965 (page 11), the Solicitors
agreed to a suggestion of the first defendant that
the property (lot 180) be sold and that he (first
' But
they informed the first defendant.that‘the debt
was then £1,481.17.11 including interest up to
15th December 1964. There 'is this interesting

defendant) be registered on transmission.

information:

'Interest continues to accrue on that amount
at 9%% per annum from 16th December, 1964,

The first defendant obtained Lettefs of Administra~
tion on the 19th November, 196k,

On the 17th September, 1965 (page 17), the‘first
defendant advised the Bank's Solicitors that he
had been registered on frahsmission in respect of
Lot 180, Barry & Lloyds. } ‘

"I must, therefore, advise that the
property will be advertised for sale in
the Daily Gleaner on the 29th September and
2nd October, 1965,.% o

He continued:

On the 18th November, 1965 the first defendant was
advised by the Solicitors for the second defendant
(Hamilton) that Hamilton vias claiming the fee simple
in lots 172,175 &’180 Barry & Lloyds as purchaser from
the deczased Reid under an agreément dated 29th
November,.l958. ' ‘ -

On the lst December, 1965 thé first defendant _
advised the Bank's Solicitors of the claim of the
Second defendant and encloscd a copy of the lietter

received from his Solicitors (page 20).

Cn the 7th Harch, 1966, the Bank'!s Solicitors

advised the first defendant that since lMr, Hamilton

did not protect his agreement to purchaze by caveat,
the 2ank was claiming priority. The last paragraph .
L= ) .../Of
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"Please let us know if you are going
to take steps to have Mr, Hamilton -
“ removed from the property. If not, it
scems that our client's only remedy =t
this stage will be to apply to the Court
~ for sale of the property under their
equitable charge" (page 22).
(11) On the 10th March, 1966 (page 23), the first defendant
;(1\‘ c acknowledged the letter of March 7 and advised that
- he was seeking opinion:

"as to what action I should take with regard'
to the occupancy of the holdlng by ir.
Hamilton etc."
(12) On the 29th September, 1966 the first defendant,
having obtained legal advice, informed the Bauk's
Solicitors that he will tzke no steps to remove

Mr, Hamilton from the property (page 26)

(13) On the lst December, 1966, Hpmllton s Solicitors
:;(;\ S informed the Bank's Sollcltors that Counsel's
= " opinion has been obtained to the effect:

Uthat Mr, Hamilton's equitable interest

is prior to that of Barclay's Bank and

we are now proceeding to write our client.
about the advice given,"

:‘With this hcad—on clash between the claim of the.Bank and Hamilton
what was the Administrafor General to do? Firstly, he was under a duty to
obtain‘iégalanVice and bona fide to act on it, This is what he did,
Secondly,'it was his dufy to inform the contending parties of the state of-

i(wjthe assets so far as he was aware. Here again, it is not disputed that he

LS

did not do so., Up to the 18th November, 1965, the first defendant appears
to Héve offered every assistance to the Bank in order that-its claim may be
satisfied. And as early as in March 1966, if not before, it was made very
clear that-fhe real contest would concern theJrespectivc priority claimed
by cbe'Bénk and Hamilton (second defendcnf)'over the property in dispute.
For the first defendant to cave tcken steps "to have Mr, Hamilton

- .removed from the-property” as suggested by the Bank's Solicitors in their

letter of the 7th March, 1966 would have landed the first defendant in
éerious'troubie. The full force and penalty mentioned in section 41 of
Cap.l (AdministratorAGener:l Law) could have been invoked by‘Hamilton and
his advisers if the first defendant hnd adopted the suggestion nade by the
Bank's Sclicitors.. The 4ls£ section provides in ouuotcnce that if the

" . Administrator General shall at cny time improperly act, or omit to act in.

N

—— L4
any mztter with respect to any estate or trust vested in or administered by

d --./him
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him, the Court, on the application of any person interested in the estate,

-

_may direct the Administrator General

"to pay out of his own pocket any sum of money
. . required to compenszte any person, estate or
trust for the consequences of any wrongful act

or omission,.,"

. If, as in this case, the estate is insolvent such a proceeding could spell

(vdlsaster for the first defend:nt.
a t . . . N
I find that/all material times the first defendant acted reasonably

and that the Bank has- 1nvolvcd the flrst defendant unnecessarlly in the
expense of litigation. The issue ofm;rlorlty could have been determined
between the Bank and.the second defendant alone. On a declaration being
ebieinea-on the claim or coupter-claim as the case may be, an ateested )
3 copy‘of the Order copid then‘be served on the first defendant, he being
<;ﬁnformed by letter or otherwise of the natu;e of'the'proceediegs that had

_been taken. The Administrator General who is bound to submit-to apd L

. fespect an order or decree of the Court touching the estate which is vested

in hlm, would then do right as the order or decree directs. Lot 130 which %%
may be regarded as the plank in the shipwreck (tabula in naufragio) will
have to bear the Weight of Hamilton' alone, ‘ !

. !
But it has been contended by Mr., Muirhead that the first defendant ¥

N

.is required to know in what sum the insolvent estate is indebted to the
(vjbnk. It has been proved that, calcuiated at the rate of 9%%, the sum due
‘and owing up to the 23rd January, 1970 is roughly £2431,0.11 (the pleadings

were amended to read 34862.09).

| I would not Be.prepared to award this sum or to declare that . |
this is the true amount due and owing pursuant to the Letter of Charge‘
i

dated the 5th February, 1960. I make the following observations in passing.,
_ S , :

) - Firstly, no mortgagee is entitled to charge‘combound interest\\

i

¢Trave under- an agrcement to this effect. I am not satisfied that there is B ¥
WEny clear clause in the agreement between the Bank ond the deceased to

this effect.

Secondly, I am prepared to accept the suggestion that as between SR -

-a banker and its customer if the relationship of mortgagee and mortgagor -

. . ' :
cexists between them, in order to grant faciliti-s to operate a current 3
' . R L e
account, the bank may make up the account-at quarterly, half-yearly or ’ A S,
<. A 1 ’
. . . ‘l
» e=rly '
-~ .ll/y J i
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yearly rests and charge future interest on the aggregate sum of principal
and interests Such/g;actice however should be mzde clear to the custonmer
at the time of the agreemeﬁt and the agreement or memorsndum embodying the
terms of the loan should show in clezr langgage thot capitalisation‘coﬁld
be oscertained aé ﬁctﬁeen the outstandirg balance and interest thereon Byf

adding the interest due to the principai outstanding at periodical rests.,

¢

that the deceased Reid was specifically made aware of what the Bank now '

Therc is nothing in the Letter of charge nor has it been proved

“,qléims the position to be. HoWever, the Bank has proved;thg practice and

it appears thét;Reid acquiesced in it, But mere proof of the.pfactice and
,passivevacquiescence‘bj the customer may not be sufficient in all cases.
ATﬁirdly, I am prepared to hold that on the basis of faoirness and.f
.~c1ear.conscience, the personal representative of a party to a contract,
(;dich to the knowledge of the other contracting party required the personal
éttention of tbe deceased during his lifetime for its fulfilﬁent,_cannot be
saddled with & c¢laim for failuré on the part of theldeceased to perform his
7personal obligation which is over and above the sum asceriained at the date
of'deatﬁ. If:the déﬁeased did specifically charge his propérty to bear the
.burdeﬁ;ofﬂhis,breach of'contractdwith;a\continuing accretion. until sucthLM,w

time as~the~other varty was compensated, then it would be a matter of —

, gonstfuction and declaration by the Court whether such & clause should be

..

-(“Jheld; If a man dies intestate, the law gives his widow, children and
other relatives certain statutory rights in and over his asset, If he dies

testate he is free to distribute his property as he wishes. But whetlher

" he dies testate or intestate a creditor may clainm against the estate for

such breaéges qommitted by the'deceased in,his lifetime whéther the claim
’séund%'in con£ract or in térf; \
.If possible the sﬁm claiméd would have to ascertained as oﬁ the
;(”“$e of tﬂe deceased's death, The question of interest after-this date
\Eguld only arise after judgment had been obtained and by virtue of the~same;

The deceased died on the 2lst July, 1961 and the Bank became aware of this,

as I have =2lready pointed, at least from March 14, 1962, On what basis the

. Bank could have charged interest at 8% and 9% on the outstanding balance

with quarﬁerly rests after the death of the deceased is a little beyond ny

\\

— Id

understanding. _ : : . " =
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f' o The common law rule which allowed a contracting party to sue the
personal reprtsentative of & deceased contracting party for =z breach of
contract (except breach of promise to marry) committed during the lifetime
aof the deceased; is embodied in the Law Reform (iliscellaneous Provisions)
Law, 1955 (Law 20/55). This Law came into force on the 6th June, 1955. X ‘
P . The relevant portion of Section 2 (1) of the law states: i
: p
( j . - :
et "Subject to the provisions of this section, on - ¥
the death of any person after the commencement %
i
of this Law all causes of action subsisting 'ﬁ
against or vested in him shall survive against, jé
or, as the case may be, 'for the benefit of, his -k

estate,

?rbm the statement of account which_the Bank oroduced, the

~ deceased was inrbreach of‘pis agreement at fhe daté of his death., He had

_/“ﬂpt paid promptly the instalments.and interests payable in accordance with

_‘“?ﬁe letter of chafge. In my judgment what survived against the estate of

the deceasedﬁgf this aéreemén£.which called for the personal attention of
Reid during his lifetime.was and is, his breach of the agreemen£ made on
the 5th February, 1§6O as calcuiafed up to and including tﬁe 21lst iuly
1961, the date of his death. |

- i hold therefore that the Bank is not entitled to claim against
the estate more than the sum outstanding and calbulﬁted up to the 2lst

Q; Ll§,A196l; In askiné for aideclaration of what sum is due and owing, fhe-
Bank's calculation is thrown‘wide open'for.the Court's ihspection and
examination, Before I come to a-close I shali make one final domment.

Hr., Muirhead has subnitted that since thc estate is insolvent the Bank
coﬁld ﬁot obtain more than 6% per annum as interest; He cites sections 71
(4) anﬁ 128 of the Bankruptcy law (Cap. 32) inAsﬁpport.of his subﬁission.

I ﬁeed not quote the. sections to which he has referred as in.my view the;

/d? not apply to the facts of this casee Theéf seqtions zay oply be invoked

" \.#here there has been an adjudication in bankruptcy and_the estate of the

bahkrupt is being administercd by the Trustee in Bankruptcy. But the spirit

behind Mr. lMuirhcad's submission deserves some comnerslation,

Since January 1, 1967, the bankruptey rules apply to every

inzclvent company in a winding up. The ligquidator need not go to the Court i

for an order to this effect, Sece ééction“293 of the Companies ict 1965
CU(Act 7 of 1965). o : . |
' , . : ‘ eeo/But
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But the baﬂkruptcy rules only apply to the administration of an-
insolvent estite if the assets are being administered by the Court, See
section 49 (1) of Cap. 180 Judicature (Supreme Courﬁ) Law,

In ny view, in order to have some uniformity there should‘be an;
ameﬁdment to the law in order to place insolvent estates on the same

- . N
. . . . 4 qlil ’
,§,f~xfoot1ng as insolvent companies so that a.Ziéé%éé or a personal representa-
5 ]

-

dfive on the one hand could resort to .the bankruptcy rules as freely and

easily as the liquidator on the other.
- .I must record my appreciation for the way Counsel conducted their

case and for the industry, clarity and tenacity displayed by them in their

arguments,
In the result there must be: . L ' B 'é

.. (1) As between the Bank and the first defendant, a

‘ﬁﬁ. o - declaration that the deceased Reid was indebted
/ ' in a sum calculated at 7/%¢ with quarterly rests
as at July 21, 1961,

(2) - As between the Bank and the second defendant,
. . : judgnent for the second defendant both on the
' claim and counter-claim with 2 declaration in

favour of the second defendant in terms of

paragraphs (a) and (b) of his prayer.
‘The Bank must pay.the costs of the first and second defendant§,
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